
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
PUBLIC HEARING/MEETING 

HADDAM TOWN HALL 
21 FIELD PARK DRIVE 

Thursday, 28 March 2013 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

Subject To Change By The Commission 
 

ATTENDANCE 

X Thomas Berchulski, Secretary 

X Margo Chase-Wells 

X Robin Munster, Chairman 

X Jen O’Neal 

A David Papallo, Jr., Vice Chairman 

A Mary Hickish, Alternate 

X Helen Reeve, Alternate – Seated 

A Kenneth Wendt, Alternate 

X Liz West Glidden, Town Planner 

X Bunny Hall Batzner, Recording Clerk 

  

  

 
1.  Call to Order 
 
Mrs. Munster, chairman, called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
2.  Attendance/Seating of Alternates 
 
Attendance was taken and regular and alternate members were seated. 
 
Mrs. Munster read the Legal Notice, as printed in the Middletown Press, into the record. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
3. A Variance to Allow a Free Standing Sign for a Gas Station to be Greater than Allowed by 
Zoning Regulations.  Said Sign Would be Located at Property Know as 1618 Saybrook Road and 
Shown as Tax Map 49 Lot 30. 
 
Albert Whiting, Ready Imaging, Inc., applicant, was present. 
 
Mrs. Batzner distributed information packets to the Board and Mrs. Glidden distributed copies of her 
memo, dated 03.28.2013, to all Board members and Mr. Whiting. 
 
Mr. Whiting reported that the gas station located at 1618 Saybrook Road was formerly a BP and has 
changed brands to Citgo (temporary signage in place).  Mr. Whiting also reported that Citgo is currently in 
the midst of a nationwide program of mandating all Citgo gas station owners to upgrade to their new 
image referred to as “Centennial” which involves the following components – 1) the canopy fascia to be 
re-decaled, 2) new signs on the canopy, and 3) Citgo requiring all owners to use the “Euro” style gas 
station sign (outlined in Board members information packet).  Mr. Whiting stated that the smallest “Euro” 
style sign that Citgo makes is 40 square feet while the Town allows 32 square feet; therefore, the owner 
is requesting a variance for the square footage (height requirements can be met). 
 
Mrs. Glidden asked if the green slips had been submitted.  Mr. Whiting submitted the Certificates of 
Mailing noting that there are only three abutters, one of which is the Town of Haddam, and was advised 
that he did not need to send a Notice to the Town (Exhibit A). 



Haddam Zoning Board of Appeals 2 
28 March 2013 
Unapproved Minutes 

Ms. O’Neal asked if the former BP sign (as illustrated in the Board members packets) met the 32 square 
foot requirement.  Mr. Whiting stated yes, both the logo and pricing signs together met the 32 square foot 
requirement.  Mrs. Glidden asked the size of the temporary sign.  Mr. Whiting stated the size of the sign 
was not change as only a Citgo sign was placed over the face of the BP sign.  Mrs. Glidden again asked 
the size of the sign.  Mr. Whiting stated he believes the sign is 5 feet by 5 feet (25 square feet) and the 
bottom price sign makes up the additional 32 square feet.  Ms. O’Neal asked if the new “Euro” sign would 
conform if it were in two pieces as the former BP signs conformed.  Mr. Whiting stated the proposal 
consists of two cabinets and that the images are not to scale as one is a photo and the other a copy from 
a Citgo branding manual. 
 
Mrs. Munster asked the current height of the existing sign.  Mr. Whiting stated the sign’s current height is 
20 feet.  Mrs. Chase-Wells asked what the owner will do if the Board should decide to deny the request.  
Mr. Whiting stated that there is a 32 square foot Citgo sign that would be Option #2.  Mr. Whiting stated 
that Citgo asks that all of their dealers and owners have their Number 1 image.  Mrs. Munster stated that 
does not give the applicant a hardship and asked what the hardship would be.  Mr. Whiting stated that the 
owner understands the possibility of denial, but did want to make the request.  Mr. Whiting further explain-
ed that the pricing sign (two LED prices and a 5x5 face) is the smallest that’s made. 
 
Mrs. Reeve asked why the signage is a concern at this time.  Mr. Whiting stated that the site has just 
changed brands and that the original plan was to develop the site (new signage and the remodeling of the 
store and the canopy was part of the package).  Mr. Whiting stated he was unclear as to the status of the 
redevelopment of the site other than the gas station canopy will get the new Citgo image and the 
installation of a new sign and new fuel dispensers. 
 
Ms. O’Neal asked for clarification in regard to Mr. Whiting not being affiliated with gas station, but merely 
being the contractor representing the installation of the signage.  Mr. Whiting stated correct.  Ms. O’Neal 
asked if the sign would go in the existing location.  Mr. Whiting stated yes. 
 
Discussion followed in regard to the setting of precedent, signs conforming to specific districts such as 
historic districts or small confined spaces, and the fact that Citgo can comply with the regulations as 
previously stated by Mr. Whiting (Option#2 – 32 square foot sign). 
 
Mr. Berchulski stated from an historical standpoint signage has been a contentious point in town and that 
he doesn’t feel comfortable allowing a corporate entity dictating how the Town should allow signage.  Mr. 
Berchulski stated that he didn’t see a hardship and the Board should uphold the regulations.    
 
There was no public present to speak either for or against the application. 
 
MOTION:  Tom Berchulski made a motion to close the public hearing at 7:45 p.m.  Margo Chase-Wells 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
PUBLIC MEETING  
 
4. A Variance to Allow a Free Standing Sign for a Gas Station to be Greater than Allowed by 
Zoning Regulations.  Said Sign Would be Located at Property Know as 1618 Saybrook Road and 
Shown as Tax Map 49 Lot 30. 
 
Albert Whiting, Ready Imaging, Inc., applicant, was present. 
 
All Board members stated that they did not see a hardship with the application as Citgo can provide a 32 
square foot sign which would comply with the Town’s regulations. 
 
Mrs. Munster read into the record letters from J.H. Torrance Downes, Senior Planner, Lower Connecticut 
River Valley Council of Governments, representing the Connecticut River Gateway Commission, dated 
03.13.2013 (did not oppose the variance as it would not be visible from the river) and Virginia L. Marshall, 
a Haddam resident, dated 03.19.2013 (opposed to the variance). 



Haddam Zoning Board of Appeals 3 
28 March 2013 
Unapproved Minutes 

Mrs. Munster reported that the applicant, as well as the Board members, had received a copy of a memo 
from Mrs. Glidden, dated 03.28.2013, outlining reasons why the variance should be denied and recom-
mended denial of the application.  Copy of memo on file in the Land Use Office. 
 
MOTION:  Robin Munster made a motion to approve a freestanding sign with a sign face that is 40 
square feet in size which is greater than the 32 square feet allowed per Section 17.5(f) of the Town of 
Haddam Zoning Regulations.  Conditions:  Standard Permit Conditions.  Tom Berchulski seconded.  
Motion denied unanimously. 
 
The Board asked Mrs. Glidden if information be sent to them prior to a meeting to allow time for review.  
Mrs. Glidden stated yes. 
 
5.  Approval/Corrections of Minutes 
 
MOTION:  Margo Chase-Wells made a motion to approve the minutes of 29 December 2011 and  
29 November 2012 as submitted.  Jen O’Neal seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
6.  Open Discussion 
 
Mrs. Munster read a letter from the Lower Connecticut River Valley Council of Government in regard to 
the availability of a study entitled “A Viewshed Model of the Lower Connecticut River and the Coastal 
Regions”. 
 
7.  Adjournment 
 
MOTION: Robin Munster made a motion to adjourn.  Jen O’Neal seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m.  
  
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Bunny Hall Batzner 

 
Bunny Hall Batzner 
Recording Clerk 
 
 
 
The next scheduled meeting is Thursday, 25 April 2013, 7:30 p.m. 


